UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
For the Fifth Crcuit

No. 92-1558
Summary Cal endar

Fred M Anderson
Pl ai ntiff-Appellant,

VERSUS

Ron Thonpson, Warden, et al.
Def endant s- Appel | ees.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
For the Northern District of Texas

(391 CV 2505 T)

( Decenber 11, 1992 )

Bef ore THORNBERRY, HI G3 NBOTHAM and BARKSDALE, Circuit Judges.
THORNBERRY, Circuit Judge":

Plaintiff brought civil rights action against warden and
others for placing himin admnistrative detention in violation of
his liberty interest pursuant to 28 C.F. R 541.22. The district

court dismssed plaintiff's action on the grounds of qualified

“Local Rule 47.5 provides: "The publication of opinions that
have no precedential value and nerely decide particul ar cases on
the basis of well-settled principles of |aw inposes needless
expense on the public and burdens on the legal profession.™
Pursuant to that Rule, the Court has determ ned that this opinion
shoul d not be publi shed.



inmmunity. W affirm

Facts and Prior Proceedi ngs

Fred Anderson, an inmate in the federal prison system was
placed in admnistrative detention pending an investigation for
all egedly stealing blank nedical prescription forns. He was in
detention for approximately a week. After investigation, it was
di scovered that Anderson did not steal the prescription forns,
al though the forns were in his possession and not obtained through
proper channels. Anderson filed a pro se conplaint alleging that
prison officials violated his constitutional rights, as well as
prison regul ati ons, when he was placed in adm ni strative detention.
Defendants filed a notion to dismss or in the alternative sunmary
judgnent, and the district court dismssed the suit on qualified

i munity grounds. Anderson appeal ed.

Di scussi on

Anderson clains that the district court erred in dismssing
his suit on the basis of qualified imunity. The district court
di sm ssed Anderson's suit because he did not allege acts sufficient
to establish a violation of his clearly established constitutional
rights of which a reasonabl e person woul d have been aware, citing
Harl owv. Fitzgerald, 457 U.S. 800, 818, 102 S.C. 2727, 73 L. Ed. 2d

396 (1982). Normally, federal officials acting within the scope of



their discretionary functions are entitled to dism ssal on the
grounds of qualified inmmunity "unless the plaintiff's allegations
state a claimof violation of clearly established law." M tchel
v. Forsyth, 472 U S 511, 526, 105 S. C. 322, 83 L.Ed.2d 259
(1985). Anderson did not plead a violation of clearly established
I aw.

In Hewtt v. Helns, 459 U S. 460, 103 S.C. 864, 74 L.Ed. 2d
675 (1983), the Suprene Court held that when a statute creates a
protected interest, such as a Iliberty interest in avoiding
adm nistrative segregation, by setting up nmandatory procedures
governing the inposition of such segregation, the procedures nust
be foll owed. Appel l ant argues that the procedures found in 28
C.F.R 8 541.22 were not followed, therefore his liberty interests
were violated. Under 28 C.F.R § 541.22, the warden may pl ace an
inmate in detention when the inmate's continued presence in the
general popul ati on poses a serious threat to life, property, self,
staff, other inmates or to the security or orderly running of the
institution and when the inmate is under investigation of a
viol ation of Bureau regul ations. Under § 541.22(b), the warden is
required to prepare a nenorandumdetailing the reasons for placing
an inmate in admnistrative detention, with a copy given to the
inmate within 24 hours of detention. Ander son argues that the
statute authorizes detention only if the prisoner is a threat to

security and if the inmate i s under pending



investigation of a violation of Bureau regulations.! Anderson
contends that because the statute utilizes the conjunctive "and",
both reasons nust be explained to the prisoner in the mandatory
witten report (why the prisoner is a "threat to security” and why
there is an "investigation of violation of regulations").

Wil e we acknow edge that the conbination of statutes and
regulations my well create a protected liberty interest, the
process due plaintiff for the deprivation of that interest is
measured by the constitution and not by the particulars of the
rules. Plaintiff Anderson was given a witten report explaining
why he was placed in admnistrative detention within the 24 hour
period prescribed by the statute. He was given fair notice of the
charges and an opportunity to be heard adm ni stratively, therefore,
while his liberty interest may have been violated, plaintiff was

given due process, and that is all the constitution requires

1 § 541.22(a) Placenment in admnistrative detention.
...The Warden nmmy ©place an inmate in
adm ni strative detention when the inmate is in
hol dover status (i.e. en route to a designated
institution) during transfer, or is a new
comm t nment pendi ng classification. The
War den may also place an inmate in
adm nistrative detention when the inmate's
continued presence in the general population
poses a serious threat to life, property,
self, staff, other inmates or to the security
or orderly running of the institution and when
the i nmat e:

(1) Is pending a hearing for a
vi ol ati on of Bureau regul ations;

(2) I's pending an investigation of a
vi ol ati on of Bureau regul ations;

(3) Is pending investigation or
trial for a crimnal act;

(4) Is pending transfer;....



Wthout a constitutional violation, plaintiff has failed to all ege
a violation of a "clearly established constitutional right,"
therefore the petition nmust be dism ssed. Harlow, 457 U S. at 818.

Anderson al so conplains that the district court erred by not
allowwng himto anend his conplaint to add four new defendants
before it dismssed his action. Anderson did not need |eave of
court to anend his conpl ai nt because Anderson's anmendnent was fil ed
prior to service of any responsive pleading. Anderson's real
problem is that he never served the additional defendants,
therefore they never becane parties to the suit. Nagle v. Lee, 807
F.2d 435, 438 (5th CGr. 1987). However, this argunent is noot
because we affirmthe dismssal for failure to state a claim

Concl usi on

Because Anderson has failed to allege the violation of a known

constitutional right, we affirmthe dismssal of his claimby the

district court.



